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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Mindarika Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS flinancial statements of Mindarika Private Limited (“the Company™).
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss. including the statement
ol Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement af Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aloresaid Ind
AS flinancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepied
in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash [lows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements® section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics™ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants ol India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s report but does not include the Ind AS linancial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not CXPIess any
form ol assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information
and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears (o be materially misstated. 1. based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information. we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

he Company’s Bowrd of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
lo the preparation of these Ind AS (inancial statements that give a true and fair view of the linancial position.
tinancial performance including other comprehensive income. cash Mows and changes in equity of the Company
i accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Indian Accounting
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Standards (Ind AS) specified under Seetion 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as umended. This responsibility also includes maintenanee of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions ol the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design. implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
ol the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS linancial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS [inancial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using (he going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or (o cease operations.
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS [inancial statements as a whole are
free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain prolessional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive (o those risks. and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequalte internal financial controls with reference o [inancial
stalements in place and the operating ellectiveness of such controls.

*  Lvaluate the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness ol management’s use ol the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. [T we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
[inancial statements or, il such disclosures are inadequate, o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease Lo continue as a going concern,

*+ Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements. including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS linancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentaiion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit lindings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identily during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
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requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related saleguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements ol the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these linancial
statements. have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements on April 29, 2022,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

[ ]

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act. we give in the *Annexure 1™ a
stalement on the matters specilied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(N

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which Lo the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as il
appears {rom our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 3 1. 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms ol Section 164(2) of the Act:

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 1o these Ind AS financial
statements and the operating ellectiveness ol such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2
to this report:

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31. 2023 has been paid/provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions ol Section 197 read with Schedule V
ol the Act:

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and (o the best of our
information and according to the explanations given (o us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its linancial position in its Ind AS
linancial statements - Refer Note 30(a) 1o the Ind AS lnancial statements:

il.  The Company did not have any long-terin contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseecable losses:

i, There were no amounts which were required o be transferred (o the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

iv. @) The management has represented (hat. to the best of its knowledge and beliel, as disclosed in
note 40(v) to the Ind AS financial statements. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(vither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
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Company to or in any other person or entily, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™). with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behall of the Company (*Uliimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or
the like on behall’of the Ultimate Beneliciaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best ol its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 40(vi) to the Ind AS linancial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (*Funding Parties™). with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly.
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behallof the Ultimate Beneliciaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

The final dividend paid by the Company during the year declared for the previous year is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

As proviso o Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only w.e.l. April 1. 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per An it Kumar Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 097214
UDIN: 230972 14BGYQNT4946
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 4, 2023
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Annexure [ referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Mindarika Private Limited (“the Company™)

In terms ol the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books ol account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and beliel. we state
that:

(iXa)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.

(i)a)B) The Company has maintained proper records showing [ull particulars of intangible assets.

(i)b)  In accordance with a regular programme of verifying the property. plant and equipment in a phased
manner over a period ol two years, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the
managemenl during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(i)c)  The title deeds ol all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly exccuted in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

(i)d)  The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use asscts) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023,

()(e)  There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(il)(a) ~ The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for inventories
lying with third parties. For inventories lying with third parties at the year end, writlen confirmations
have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with
inventory records. In our opinion, the [requency of verification by the management is reasonable and the
coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed that were
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(i(b)  As disclosed in note 14(c) to the Ind AS linancial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security
of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of
the fnancial statements. the quarterly returs/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books ol accounts ol the Company.

(iii) During the year, the Company has not made investments in. provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans. secured or unsecured, to companies. firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties excepi for loans granted to employees for which requisite information is
wiven below:

a)  The Company has provided loans to employees as below:
(Rs.in erores)

Aggregale amount granted/ pm\rlded during the vear to :.mpluv-,u 2.11
Balance t‘ll1l'-ldi‘|l.|l]1L as al March 31. 2023 1.09
b)  The terms and conditions of the grant of loans provided during the vear are not prejudicial o the

Company's interest,

¢} The Company has granied loans during the year (o employees where the schedule of repayviment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayviment or receipis are reaular,
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d)

e)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)a)

(vii)(b)

(viii)

(ix)(a)

(ix)(b)

(ix)c)

(ixid)

(ixNe &

There are no amounts of loans granted to employees which are overdue [or more than ninety days.

There were no loans granted to employees which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed
or extended or fresh loans granted (o settle the overdues of existing loans given 1o the same employees.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period ol repayment to employees.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees. and security in respect of which provisions of Sections 185
and 186 ol the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning ol Sections 73 10 76 ol the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder. to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books ol account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Companies
Act. 2013, related to the manufacturing of auto electrical switches and other automotive components,
and are ol the opinion that prime facie, the specilied accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not. however, made a detailed examination of the same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax. provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax. cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According
to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

The dues ol goods and services lax. provident fund, employees™ state insurance, income-tax. sales-tax.
service tax. duty of custom. duty of excise. value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have
not been deposited on account ol any dispute. are as follows:

Name of Statue | Nature of Dues Amount (in | Period to which | Forum where the dispute is
Rs. crores) | amount related | pending

Central Excise Excise duty 0.31 February 2014 1o | CESTAT. New Delhi

Act, 1944 demand June 2017

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year, Accordingly.
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment ol interest
thercon (o any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or [inancial institution or government
or any government authority.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year, Henee. the requirement (o report
on clause (Ix)(e) of the Crder s not applicable 1o the Company.

On an overall examination of the linancial statements ol the Company. no [unds raised an short=term
basis have been used Tor long-term purposes by the Company.

1) The Company does nol have any subsidiary. associate or joint venture. Accordingly. the requirement
lo report on clause 3(ix)(e) and (1) of the Order is not applicable o the Company.
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(x)a)

(x)(Dh)

(xi)a)

(xi)(b)

(xi)e)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)(a)

(xiv)(b)

(xv)

(xvi)a)

(xvi)b)

(xvi)(e)

(xvi)d)

(xvii)

(xviil)

(Nix)

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / [urther public
olfer (including debt instruments). Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allounent or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud / material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year,

During the year. no report under Sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
liled by cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 with the Central Government.

As represenied 1o us by the management. there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) to (¢) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act.
2013 where applicable and the delails have been disclosed in the notes to the financial stalements. as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit reports ol the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
Lo the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as delined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
ol India. Accordingly. the requirement Lo report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

There are no other companies as a part of the Group. Hence. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)
ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current linancial year and immediately preceding
linancial year.

There has been no resignation ol the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable o the Company.

On the basis of the linancial ratios disclosed in note 39 io the Ind AS {inancial statements. ageing and
expected dales of realization of financial assets and payment of fnancial labilities. other information
accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge ol the Board of Directors and managemeni plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions. nothing has come to our
altention. which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its labilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
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(xx)(a)

(xx)(b)

they fall due within a period ol one year from the balance sheet date. We. however, state that this is not
an assurance as Lo the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guaraniee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year rom the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they Tall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred
to a fund specilied in Schedule VIT ol the Companies Act (the Act). in compliance with second proviso
to Sub-section 5 of Section 135 ol the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 29 to the Ind AS
financial statements.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be translerred to a
special account in compliance ol provision ol Sub-section (6) of Section 135 of Companies Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 29 to the Ind AS lnancial statements.

IFor 8.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

per Amit Kumar Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 097214
UDIN: 230972 14BGYQNT4946
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 4, 2023
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MINDARIKA PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-seetion 3 of Section 143 of the Com panies
Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal linancial controls with reference to IND AS linancial statements of Mindarika Private
Limited (“the Company™) as ol March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
ol the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible [or establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Financial Controls Over  Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequale internal linancial controls that were operating effectively
lor ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the cxtent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and. both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS [inancial stalements was established and
maintained and i’ such controls operated efTectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind
AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating elfectiveness ol internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment ol the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS linancial
statements, whether due to [raud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to linancial statements is a process designed Lo provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of linancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures thai (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records thal. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit
preparation of linancial statements in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles. and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors ol the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assels that could have a material effect on the
financial statements, :
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial statements

Becausce ol the inherent limitations ol internal linancial controls with reference to linancial statements. including
the possibility ol collusion or improper management override ol controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal lnancial controls with
reference to [inancial statements Lo [uture periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference (o financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal [inancial controls with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over (inancial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Kumar Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 097214
UDIN: 23097214BGYQNT4946
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 4, 2023




Mindarika Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(All figures are in 2 crore unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Assets

Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 4
Capital work in progress 4
Intangible assets 6
Right-of-use assels 3

Intangible assets under development [
I"inancial ssets

Other [inancial assets 11
Deferred tax assets (net) 15
Income tax asset (net) 12A

Other non-current assets 7
Total non-current assets (\)
Current assets

Inventories 8
FFinancial assets
I'rade receivables 9
Cash and cash equivalents 10
Other [inancial assets 11
Other current assets 7

Total current assets (B)
Total assets (A+B)

Equity and Liabilities

Equity
Lquity share capital 13A
Other equity 138
Total equity ()
Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilitics 5
Other financial liabilitics 19
Provisions 16
Deferred government grants 17
Total non- current liabilities (B)
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14
Lease liabilities K]
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 18
Total outstanding dues ol creditors other than above
Other financial liabilities 19
Provisions 16
Delerred governnient grants 17
Other current liabilities 20
Current tax liabilities (net) 1213

Total current Habilities ( C)
Total linbilities (D) = (B+C)
Total equity and liabilities (A+D)

Summary ol signilicant accounting policies (reler note 3)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLLP
Chartered Accountants
\{m Registration No. 30 10031/1:300003

N

> g
,\mlly}umaﬁ:!nin
Partien
Membership No. 0 097214
Place: Gurugran

Date: 4 May 2023

164,58 140.53
35.02 7325
6.33 6,33
14,87 14.79
.56 0.72
1.91 213
4.56 1.82
1.34 236
246 |.38
232,65 171.51
175.40 137.35
171,43 133.66
1547 40.25
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Mindarika Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al figures are in  crore unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Income
I Revenue from contracts with customers 21 1.247.63 887.69
11 Other income 22 2.12 4.99
Il Total income (Iy+(11) 1,249.75 892.68
IV Expenses

Cost of raw materials and components consumed 23 863.03 597.57

Purchase ol traded goods 24 2.86 2.37

(Increase) in inventories of linished goods and work-in-progress 25 (9.85) (8.78)

Employee benelits expense 26 142,96 109.45

IFinance costs 27 247 2.36

Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 31.09 26.43

Other expenses 29 119.43 91.56

Total expenses 1.154.01 820.96
Vv Profit before tax (II1)-(1V) 95.74 71.72
VI  Tax expense

(1) Current tax expense 26.73 18.72
(2) Delerred tax eredit 13 (2.70) (1.04)

Income tax expense 24.03 17.68
VIl  Profit for the year (V)-(VI) 71.71 54.04
VIl Other comprehensive income

Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods:

Re-measurement (losses) on defined benefit plans (0.17) (0.37)

Income tax effect 0.04 0.09

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.13) (0.28)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VIIy+(VIII) 71.58 53.76

Earnings per share (in %)

Basic 32A 71.71 54.04

Diluted 32A 749 54.04

Summary ol signilicant accounting policies (refer note 3)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these linancial statements

As per our report ol even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
IFirm Registration No.:3010031/E300003

lFor and on behall ol the Bouard ol Directors ol
*rivate Limited

JKumar Jain
Partner
Membership No, : 097214

Place: Gurugran
Date: 4 May 2023

N\
T
| o
- '/.
Nirmal Kumar Minda
Managing Director
DIN No: 00014942

\ .\_._\:'-\.‘\_:“*'-\
Smi}h_\r Kumar Aggarwal
Chief Financial Officer

r\nilén(gh Malkhloga
Director
DIN No: 03225184

0 \;MQ%‘

Brijesh Kumar
Company Secretary
Membership No. 36070



Mindarika Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year eaded 31 March 2023
(AN ligures are in 2 crore unless atherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31 Marech 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

A,

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit belore tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Property. plant and equipment written ol T’

Provision for doubtlul trade reeeivables

Net gain on sale of property. plant and equipments

Liubilities/ provision written back

Provisions [or doubtiul trade receivables written back

Bad trade receivables. other reecivables and advances written ofT

Finance costs
Interest received
Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:

(Inerease) in inventories

{Increasey in trade receivables

(Increase)/ deerease in loans and other linancial assels
Deerease/ (inerease) in other assels

Inerease in trade payables

Inerease in other lnancial labilities

Inerease/ (deerease) in provisions

(Decreaselinerease in other liabilities and government grants

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid. net ol relund
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash Mow from investing activities:

Purchase of property. plant and equipment and intangibles
(including capital work in progress and capital advances)
Acquisition of right-ol=use asscl

Praceeds [rom sale of property. plant and equipment
Advanee against sale ol property. plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from linancing activities
Proceeds Trom short-term borrowings (net)
Finunee cost paid

Payment of principal portion ol lease labilitics
Dividend paid

Net cash (used in) financing nctivities

Net (decrease)/inerease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear

95.74 71.72
3109 26.43
(.08 0.05
0.1 0.06
(0.57) {3.19)
(0.13) (0.15)
(0.06) [RINIES]
(0.18 (.39
247 2.36
(0,68) (0.26)
128.23 97.37
(38.03) (47.28)
(38.00) (31.17)
(0.30}) .49
1.21 (1.20)
33.58 46.82
1.29 0.91
2.4 (1.03)
(9.69) 8.03
(45.72) (24.41)
82.51 72.96
{24.85) (19.31)
57.66 53.65
(82.59) (24.56)
(1.55) -
1.06 3.00
8.70 “
.68 0.26
(73.70) (21.24)
11.95 .53
(2.47) (2.30)
(2.01) (3.92)
(16.21) (11.32)
(8.74) {15.05)
(24.78) 17.36
40.25 22.89
15.47 40.25




Mindarjka Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
Components of cash and cash equivalents:-
Cash on hand
Balance with banks:
= current account
- cash credit account
- deposits with original maturity of upto three months
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10)

Summary of signilicant accounting policies (reler note 3)
The uecompanying notes are an integral part ol these linancial statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chariered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:3010031/1:300003

cumar Jain
Partner
Membership No. : 097214

Place: Gurugran
Date: 4 May 2023

0.01 0.01
8.94 10.28
6.51 3.96
0.01 26.00
15.47 40.25
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Managing Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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Mindarika Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Equity shares of T 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number of Amount
shares
At 1 April 2022 1.00,00,000 10.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
At 31 March 2023 1.00,00,000 10.00
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Equity shares of ¥ 10 ecach issued, subscribed and fully paid Number ol Amount
shares
At 1 April 2021 1.00,00.000 10.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - =
At 31 March 2022 1,00,00,000 10.00
B. Other equity
General Capital Retained Total
Particulars Reserve Reserve earnings
Asat 1 April 2021 6.55 0.09 205.33 211.97
Profit for the year - - 54.04 54.04
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - (0.28) (0.28)
Less:-Final dividend (Z10.32 per equity share) - - (10.32) (10.32)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6.55 0.09 248.77 255.41
Profit for the year - - 71.71 71.71
Other comprehensive income. net of tax - - (0.13) (0.13)
Less:-Final dividend (216.21 per equity share) = - (16.21) (16.21)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 6.55 0.09 304.14 310.78

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 3)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered lccountants
Firm Registration No.:301003E/E300005

it Wumar Jain
Partner
Membership No. : 097214

Place: Gurugran
Date: 4 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mindagika Priv it\l‘lmlted

\\f\"/

Nlrmn! humar Minda
Managing Direcior
DIN No: 00014942

\‘\\M‘

Sanjay Kumar Aggarwal
Chief Financial Officer

N\

Anil Smg}Makhloga
Director
DIN No: 03225184

\'”“ﬁ Ur"-ﬁL/ J
Brijesh Kumar
Company Seciretary
VMembership No. 36070



Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

2,

Corporate information

Mindarika Private Limited ("the Company") is a private limited company incorporated on 9 November 1995 under
the Companies Act, 1956. It was a Joint venture between UNO Minda Limited (formerly known as Minda Industries
Limited) and Tokai Rika Co, Limited, Japan. The Company became subsidiary of UNO Minda Limited w.e.f. 1
January 2018. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of automotive electronic switches
and other automotive components. The registered office of the Company is B-64/1, Wazirpur Industrial Area, Delhi -
110052 India.

Information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note 38.
The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 4. 2023.
Significant accounting policies
A. Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division |1 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. (Ind AS compliant Schedule

I[1). as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest crores (INR 00,00,000).
except when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.
B. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS.

C. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, assets, liabilities, expenses and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements.
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Assessment of lease term:

[n determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
to exercise an extension option. or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). The
assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this
assessment and that is within the control of the lessee,

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgments that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing
of revenue from contracts with customers:

Certain contracts for the sale of products include a right of price revision on account of change of commodity
prices/purchase price that give rise (o variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration. the Company
is required to use either the expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method betier
predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled.



Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Company determined that the most likely method is the appropriate method to use in estimating the variable
consideration for the sale of products. The selected method that better predicts the amount of variable consideration
was primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount method
is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value method is used for contracts with
more than one volume threshold.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration
are not constrained based on its historical experience. business forecast and the current economic conditions. In
addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date.
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount
and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and
complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations
by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The useful lives and residual values of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined by the
management based on technical assessment by the management. The Company believes that the derived useful life
best represents the period over which the Company expects to use these assets.

Gratuity benefit

The cost ol the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the defined benefit obligations
are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate. management considers the interest
rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the
defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the country. Future
salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the country. Further details
about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis. are given in note 33.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
the Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation.
based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. which
is the higher ol its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.




Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years
and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes, These estimates are also relevant to other intangibles. During the year, the Company has
done the impairment assessment of non-financial assets and have concluded that there is no impairment in value of
non-financial assets as appearing in the financial statements.

L.ease incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. therefore its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liability. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have 1o pay to borrow
over similar term. and with a similar security, the fund necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right of
use assets in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore effects what the Company "would have to pay"
which requires estimates when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the term
and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as market interest rates
when available,

Provision for warranty

Warranty provisions are measured at discounted present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Warranty provisions is
determined based on the historical percentage of warranty expense to sales for the same types of goods for which
the warranty is currently being determined. The same percentage to the sales is applied for the current accounting
period to derive the warranty expense to be accrued. It is adjusted to account for unusual factors related to the goods
that were sold, such as defective inventory lying at the depots. It is very unlikely that actual warranty claims will
exactly match the historical warranty percentage, so such estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes
in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence.

& Summary of Significant accounting policies
A. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
Assets
An asset is classified as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when:
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.
¢} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporling period, or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the
reporiing period.

All other labilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assels and liabilities.




Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

B. Foreign currency transactions
Functional and presentation currency

These Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Z). which is also the Company'’s
functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which a
Company operates and is normally the currency in which the Company primarily generates and expends cash.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest crores and two decimal thereof, unless otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses average
rate if the average approximates the actual rate al the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively ).

C. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability. or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 1o generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value. maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which Ffair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant Lo the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level I — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable ~3

4 U'ﬁ &
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

The Company s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement.
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for nan-recurring
measurement, such as assets held for sale in discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, if any.

Al each reporting date. management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis. the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents, if any.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

D. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instruments of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost. fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus. in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (J) Revenue from
contracts with customers,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)" on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows. selling the financial assets. or both.

Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured
al fair value through OCT are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date. i.e.. the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the assel. =

e
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debt instruments at amortised cost.
o Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
s Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI),

Financial Assets at amortised cost
A *financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

(i)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash Mows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the Company's Balance Sheet) when:

(i) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or

(ii) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through” arrangement: and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset. or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
loans and borrowings, payables. as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables.
net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and lease liabilities
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
e

* Financial liabilities at fair value through profii or loss




Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

* Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition. and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL. fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However. the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in profit
and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when. and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk exposures.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent Lo initial recognition, derivatives are measured at
fair value and changes therein are generally recognised in statement of profit and loss.

E. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost. net accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals. the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives, Likewise. when a major inspection is performed. its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially vecognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no luture economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company had elected Ind AS 101 exemption and continued with the carrying value for all of its property.
plant and equipment and capital work in progress as its deemeleost as at the date of transition.
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F.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property. plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of
the item of property. plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced
part getting derecognised. The cost for day-to-day servicing of property. plant and equipment are recognised in
statement ol profit and loss as and when incurred.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress comprises the cost of tangible and intangible assets that are not ready for their intended use
at the reporting date,

Depreciation

Depreciation on building, tools and dies, leasehold improvement and leasehold land is provided on straight line
basis and depreciation on other items of property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value basis
over the estimated useful lives as prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 or as estimated by the
management. The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant
and equipment:

Particulars Management Useful life as per
estimate of useful | Schedule Il of Companies
life (years) Act, 2013 (years)

Building 30 30

Plant & Machinery 5to 15 15

Furniture and fixtures 10 10

Vehicles 8/10 8/10

Office equipment 5 5

Server & Network 3 3

End user devices, such as desktops, laptops. etc. | 3 3

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The Company based on management estimate depreciate certain items of plant & Machinery over the estimated
useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule I of Companies Act 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In particular, the Company considers
the impact of heath, safety and environment legislation in its assessment of expected useful lives and estimated
residual values.

Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-raia basis i.e. from / (upto) the date on which asset is
ready for use/ (disposed of).

Depreciation method. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted i
appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Foliowing initial recognition.
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles. excluding capitalised development costs. are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred,

The useful life of intangible assets are assessed as finite.
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Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
assel.

The estimated useful lives are as [ollows:

- Software 3 years
- Technical know-how 6 years

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life. Amortisation
method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment
Impairment of financial instruments
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent measurement
at amortised cost e.g., trade and other receivables, security deposits, loan to employees, etc.

The Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. right from its initial
recognition.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e.. all cash shortfalls). discounted at the original
effective interest rate,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUSs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to deiermine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historically observed defaull rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss.
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ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company s non-financial assets. other than deferred tax assets. are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the assel’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (*CGU") is the greater of its value in use or its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (*CGU").

An impairment loss is recognized. if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at end of each reporting period for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
assel’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

H. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. Thal is. if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shori-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.. the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

[F ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

The Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of'a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option 10
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(unless they are incurred Lo produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased 1o reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition. the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured il there is a modification. a change in the lease term. a change in the lease payments (e.g..
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(i)

changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and nel realisable value.
The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories is as follows:

Raw Materials, components, stores and spares:- Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted
average basis.

Finished goods and work in progress:- Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of direct
materials is determined on moving weighted average basis.

Traded goods, Tools and Moulds : Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

Stores and spares which do not meet the definition of property. plant and equipment are accounted as
inventories.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related
finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not
written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost
of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value
is made on an item-by-item basis.

Revenue from contracts with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements because it typically controls the goods before transferring them to the customer. Revenue is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and revenue can
be reliably measured. regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Goods and services tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on
value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly. it is excluded from
revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of product is recognized upfront at the point in time when the product is delivered o the
customer. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts. price concessions and incentives, if any. as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also
excludes taxes collected from customers,

Revenue from sale of servieces

Revenue from services is recognized in accordance with the terms ol contract when the services are rendered
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(iii) Trade receivables

(iv)

K.

A reeeivable is recognised i an amount ol consideration is unconditional (i.c.. only the passage of time is required
before payment ol the consideration is due). Refer 1o accounting policies ol [inancial assets in section (D) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a lime basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period. where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense. when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date. then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Gratuity is a defined benefit obligation. The Company accounts for the gratuity liability, based upon the
actuarial valuation performed in accordance with the Projected Unit Credit method carried out at the year end.
by an independent actuary. Gratuity liability of an employee, who leaves the Company before the close of the
year and which is remaining unpaid, is provided on actual computation basis.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term

employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based
on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses
are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company
recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service. The entire leave obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet as the Company
does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
date,

Remeasurements. comprising of actuarial gains and losses. the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability ). are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they oceur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier oft

o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment. and
® The date that the Company recognises related restruciuring costs
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of profit

and loss:
° Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
s Net interest expense or income

(i) Share-based paymenis

The holding company of the Company has implemented an Employee Stock Option Scheme under which certain
senior employees of the Company are also covered. The cost under the scheme is determined at the fair value of
the option on the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. Further details are given in
Note 41,

I.. Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the expected lives of the related assets and
presented within other income.

M. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,

N. Provisions and contingencies
(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ol a past
evenl, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate assel, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If
the effect of the time value of money is material. provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects. when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the
provision due to passage of the time is recognised as finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. I it
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation. the provision is
reversed.

Warranty

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying producis are sold. The provision is based on
technical evaluaiion. historical warranty data and a weighting of all the possible outcomes by their associated
probabilities.

(ii) Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims. litigation. assessment. fines, penalties. etc. are
recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably,




Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

0.

income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. [t is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted. at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income (OCI) or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed al each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

P When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority. in
which case. (he lax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item,
as applicable

» When receivables and payables are stated with the amount ol tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to. the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the balance sheet.

P. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighied average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
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For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributablé to equity
shareholders of Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Q. Contingent liabilities and contingent asseis

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be
estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions. but are disclosed unless the possibility of
outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs,

R. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less. which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

S. Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders when the distribution is authorised, and
the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution
is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

T. New and amended standards

(i)

(ii)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules
2022 dated March 23, 2022, to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2022,

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAI's “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements under Indian Accounting Standards™ with the reference to the “Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard™ without significantly changing its requirements.

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations to
avoid the issue of potential *day 2" gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or Appendix C, Levies,
ofInd AS 37, if incurred separately. The exception requires entities to apply the criteria in Ind AS 37 or Appendix
C, Levies, ol Ind AS 37, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a present
obligation exists at the acquisition date.

The amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there were no contingent assets.
liabilities or contingent liabilities within the scope of these amendments that arose during the period.

Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments modified paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing. il any. shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the
directly atiributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property. plant. and equipment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2022. These
amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there were no sales of such items
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(i)

produced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fuifilling a Contract

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable of meeting the obligations under the contract
costs (i.e., the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it.

The amendments specify that when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an entity needs to
include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services including both incremental costs
(e.g., the costs of direct labour and materials) and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities
(e.g., depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract and costs of contract management and supervision).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there were no onerous
contracts entered during the period.

Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the '[0 per cent' test for derecognition of financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the [ees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include
only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf,

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there were no modifications of
the Company’s financial instruments during the period.

Ind AS 41 Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of Ind AS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring the [air value of assets within the scope of Ind AS 41,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2022, The amendments
had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it did not have assets in scope of [AS 41 as at the
reporting date.

L. Standards notified but not yet effective

(i)

(ii)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023,

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments to Ind AS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and apply (o
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS |
The amendments aim (o help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing

the requirement for entities 1o disclose their “significant” accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
‘material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
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The amendments to Ind AS | are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2023. Consequential
amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with
the amended requirements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction -Amendments to Ind
AS 12

The amendments to IND AS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it
no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all
deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations.
Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101,

The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 April 2023. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.
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Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All ligures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)

4(ii) Capital work in progress ageing schedule

(i)

(i)

As at 31 March 2023

For Capital-work-in progress (CWIP). ageing schedule as under:

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars Less than | 12 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 35.02 - - - 35.02
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 35.02 - - - 35.02
As at 31 March 2022
For Capital-work-in progress. ageing schedule as under:
Amount in CWIiP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 12 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 7.25 G = - 1.25
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 7.25 - - - 7.25

Note : All the above projects are neither overdue. nor exceeded its cost compared to its approved budget.

This space has been intentionally left blank




Mindarika Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AL figures are in 2 crore unless otherwise stated)

5 Right-of-use assets and Lease Habilities
I'he Company has entered into commercial leases of land. building und solar panels. Leases entered for land usage
has [ile ol 99 years. lease entered lor building has a lile of 16 years with renewal option included in the contraet and
lease contract entered for solar panels is lor |3 years. There are no restrictions placed upon the Company by
ealering into these leases, The Company has availed exemption available as per Ind AS 116 [or leased building
which has lease period ol 11 months. The Company has opted Tor the exemption ol short term leases,

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Leasehold Building Plant and Total
Land machinery
Asat | April 2021 232 12,37 6.05 20.74
|ess: Disposals fadjustments {1.04) - (1.04)
As at 31 March 2022 32 11.33 6.05 19.70
Add: Additions 1.55 - - 1.55
As at 31 March 2023 3.87 11.33 6.05 21.25
Accumulated Depreciation
Asat | April 2021 0.08 331 .07 346
Add: Depreciation charge lor the year .02 1.03 (.40 | .43
As at 31 Mareh 2022 0.10 4.34 0.47 4.91
Add: Deprecialion charge lor the year 0.03 1.04 (.40 1.47
As at 31 March 2023 0.13 5.38 0.87 6.38
Net earrying value
As at 31 March 2023 3.74 5.95 5.18 14.87
As at 31 March 2022 2.22 6.99 5.58 14.79

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease linbilities and the movements during the year:
Particulars Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Asat | April 25.20 27.94
Lease modilication impact - (1.04)
Aceretion ol interest 2.06 222
Payments (4.07) (3.92)
As at 31 March 23.19 25.20
Current 2.35 2.01
Non Current 200.84 23.19
Total 23.19 25.20

The maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flow in respect of lease recognised under IND AS 116-
31 March 2023

Less than More than 5

Particulars 1 to 5 years

| year S year
Building 3.50 15.83 X35
Plant and Machiners 0.73 2.87 5.37
Total cash outflow 4.23 18.70 8.72

31 March 2022

; Liess than
Particulars i

I to § years

More than 5

I year year
Building 3.33 15.08 7.60)
Plane and Machinery 0.74 2,90 6.07
Total cash outfiow 4.07 [7.98 13.67

Following sre the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Depreciation on right-ol=use assets
Interest expense on lepse linbilities
Eapenses related 1o short=term leases (ineluded in other expenses)

.47
2006
1.16

|45
222

[.09



Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)

6 Intangible assets
a. Reconciliation of carrying amount
Particulars Software Technical Total
know how
Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2021 8.39 0.89 18.28
Add: Additions during the year 0.18 0.70 0.88
As at 31 March 2022 8.57 10.59 19.16
Add: Additions during the year 0.44 2.93 3.37
Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year (0.01) - (0.01)
As at 31 March 2023 9.00 13.52 22.52
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2021 5.99 4.40 10.39
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 0.87 1.37 2.24
As at 31 March 2022 6.86 5.77 12.63
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 1.66 1.89 3.55
Less: On disposals / adjustments during the year (0.01) - (0.01)
As at 31 March 2023 8.51 7.66 16.17
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 0.49 5.86 6.35
As at 31 March 2022 1.71 4.82 6.53
b. Intangible assets under development
Particulars Axat Asaut
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- Technical know how 1.56 0.72
1.56 0.72
¢. [ntangible asset under development ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023
(i) For Intangible assets under development, ageing schedule as under:
Amount for 2 period of
Particulars Less than 1 L2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
- Projects in progress .56 - - - 1.56
- Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Tatal 1.56 - - - 1.56
As at 31 March 2022
(i) For Intangible assets under development, ageing schedule as under;
Amount for a period of
Particulars Less than | L2 eats 2:3 yesis More than Total
year 3 years
- Projects in progress 0.09 0.63 - - 0.72
- Projects temporarily suspended - - B - -
Total 0.09 0.63 - - 0.72

Note : Al the above projects are neither overdue, nor exceeded its cost compared to its approved budget.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)

7 Other assets
(L nsecured, considered good)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(A) Non-current
Capital advances
- 10 a related party (refer note 38)
- 10 other than related party
Prepaid expenses
Total (A)

(B) Current
Advances to suppliers
- 1o a related party (refer note 38)
- 1o other than related party
Prepaid expenses
Balance with government authorities
Others
Total (B)
Total (A)+ (B)

8 Inventories

a) Details of inventories:

- 0.05
246 1.32
- 0.01
2.46 1.38
0.15 0.19
1.96 4.96
229 1.24
4.72 3.95
0.01 0.01
9.13 10.35
11.59 11.73

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

Raw materials and components ( including goods in transit of ¥ 20.79
crores (31 March 2022: ¥ 17.22 crores))

Work in progress

Finished goods

Tools and moulds

Stores and spares

As at
31 March 2022

118.35 94.29
13.85 8.99
20.42 13.12
11.70 13.99
11.10 6.96

175.40 137.35

b) Stores and spares are capitalised if they meet the definition of property. plant and equipment as per Ind AS 16.

otherwise they are classified as inventory.

¢) Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN figures are in 2 crore unless otherwise stated)

9

1)

b)

)

Trade receivables

Details of Trade receivables

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Unsceured and considered good. unless otherwise stated

- [rom reluted parties (refer note 38) 2394 18.72
- [rom athers [47.49 114.94
Credit impaired
- from others 0.11 0.06
171.54 133.72
Loss allowunee - credit impaired (0.11) (0.06)
Total (net) 17143 133.66
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30-60 days.
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding lor lollowing periods from due date of payment
Particulars pe— Less than 6 |6 months- More than o~
but not 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs T'otal
due months I yvear 7 3 years
Undisputed  Trade  Receivables-
Considered zood 120.80 48.63 2.00 - - - 17143
Undisputed Trade Receivables-
which have significant increase in - - - - - - -
credit risk
Undisputed  Trade  Receivables-
Credit impaired - - . - - - 941
Disputed Trade Receivables-
Considered good ) } ) ) ) § i
Disputed Trade Recervables- which
have significant increase in credit - - - = < = =
risk
Disputed Trade Receivables- Credit
impuaired ) i i ) ) ) i
Total 120.80 48.63 2.11 - - - 171.54
As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Qurens Less than 6|6 months- More than =
but not I-2 years 2-3 years Fotal
&iip months 1 vear 3 years
Undisputed  Trade  Receivables-
Considered good 104.94 28.69 0.03 2 = - [133.66
Undisputed Trade Receivables-
which have significant increase in - - - - - - -
credit risk
Undisputed  Trade  Receivables-
Credit impaired ; - he - : : 046
[Msputed Trade Receivables-
Considered good 5 . B B ) ) i
Disputed Trade Receivables- which
have significant increase in credit - = = - = - -
risk
Disputed Trade Receivables- Credit
impaired i B i i ) i i
Total 104.94 28.69 0.09 - - - 133.72
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN figures are in Z crore unless otherwise stated)

1

AL Breakup of Cash and eash equivalents

—

2B

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Balances with banks:

- current accounts 894 10.28

- cash eredit account 6.51 396

- Deposits with original maturity of upto three months 0.01 26,00

Cash on hand .01 0.01
1547 40.25

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

As at 31 March 2023

Parilcilais Opening  Additions Cash Flows Other Closing Balance

Balance

Current horrowings 11.07 1195 = - 23.02

Current lease liabilities (note 3) 200 - (2.01) 235 2335

Non-current lease labilities (note 5) 23,19 - - (2.35) 20).84

Total 36.27 11.95 (2.01) - 46.21

As at 31 March 2022

Particnlars Opening  Additions Cash Flows Other Closing Balance

Balance

Current borrowings 9.52 .55 - - 11.07

Current lease liabilities (note 5) 1.77 - (1L.77) 2.01 201

Non-current lease libilities (note 3) 26.17 = - (2.01) 2416

Total 37.46 1.55 (1.77) - 37.24

The "Other” column includes the effect of reclassification of non-current portion of lease liabilities to current due 1o the passage of lime,

Other financial assets
Particulars —— Asiag

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current
Bank deposits (due to maturity after 12 months from the reporting date) 0.40 0.40
Loan to employees 0.06 0.12
Security deposits-related parties (refer note 38) 0.32 0.30
Sceurity deposits-others 1.13 1.31
Total (A) 1.91 213
Current
Loun to employees 1.03 0.51
Security deposits 0.04 0.03
Ixport and other incentives receivable 022 0.23
Interest acerued on fixed deposits 0.0 (.04
Total (B) 1.33 0.81
Total (A+B) 324 294
Income tax asset (net)

. As at Asat
_— 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-¢urrent
Income tax asset (net) | 34 2.36
Total 1.34 2.36
Current tax linbilities {net)

Particulars AL Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax liabilities 085 -

Total

L85
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13A Equity Share capital
1) Details of share capital

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Aunthorised equity share capital
Lquity shures of 210/- each 1.50.00.000 1500 1.50.00.000 1500
Issued, subseribed and paid up
Equity shares of T10/- cach 1.00.00.000 10.00 1.00.00.000 1000

b) Reconciliation of outstanding equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1.00.00,000 1000 1.00.00.000 1000
Shares 1ssued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,00,000 10.00 1,00,00,000 10.00

¢) Shares held by the holding company

Particulars As a1t 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Y of Number of % of
shares holding shares holding
UNO Minda Limited (Formerly known as Minda Industries 31.00.000 51% 51.00.000 51%

Limited)

d) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class ol equity shares having a par value of T10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled (o one vote per share
The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors. il any. is subject to the approval

ol the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of higuidation of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled o recerve remaining assets of the Company. afier
distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

¢) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the C

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
Number of % of Number of % of
shares holding shares holding
UNO Minda Limited (Formerly Known as Minda Industries 51.00.000 51% 51.00.000 S51%
Limited)
Tokai Rika Co. Ltd. Japan 37.00.000 3% 37.00,000 3%
Mr. Nirmal Kumar Minda 12,600,000 12% 12.00.000 12%

N As per records of the Company. including its register of shurcholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest. the above shareholding represents both lezal and beneficial ownership of shares.

2) Details of shares held by promoters
As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares at Change No, of % of Tatal % Change
Promoter Name the beginning  during the shares at shares
of the vear vear the end of
LINO Minda Limited (Formerly known as Minda Industries 51.00,000 - 51,00.000 51% 0.00%
Limited)
Tuokar Rika Co. Lid. Japan 37.00.000 - 37.00,000 3T 0.00%,
Mr. Nirmual Kumar Minda 1 2.00.000 - 12.00.000 12%, 0.00%
As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares at Change No. of % of Total % Chanpe
Promoter Name the beginping  during the shares at shares
uf the vear year the end of
UNO Minda Limited (Formerly known as Minda Industries S100.000 3100000 Sty 000
Lmned)
Tokar Rika Co lad. Jupan 37.00.000 37.00,000 3% 0,009

Nr Nirmal Kumar Minda

12,0000

| 20000000

12% 000,

f) The members i therr annual general meeting dated 20 June 2022 declared dividend of 2 16 21 per share for the finaneial vear ended 31 March

2022 amounting to € 16 21 crores
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
TAIL Figires are i 2 erore unless otliers ise stated )

138 Other equity

(i

(ii)

(iif)

Particulars Ax ek

31 Mareh 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Cupital Reserve (.00 (109
Gieneral reserves .55 6,55
Retained carnings 304, 14 24877
Total 310.78 255,41

Nature and purpose of other reservey

Retnined enrnings

Rewined carnings are the profits that the Company has carned/incurred Gl date. fess dividends paid to sharcholders. Retained earnings include re-
measurcment loss / (gain) on defined benelit plans. net ol txes that will not be reclassilied to Statement of Prolit and | oss

General Reserves

Under the ersiwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was ereated through an annual transler of nel income at a specilied percentage in
aceardinee with applicable regulations. The purpose of these ransfers was to ensure that il o dividend distribution in a given vear is more thin
10% ol the paid-up capital o the Compuny for that year. then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that vear,
Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement o mandatorily transfer a specificd percentage of the net profit 1o general
teserve has been withdrawn. |lowever, the amount previously transferred 1o the general reserve can be utilised only in accordanee with the
specilie requirements of Companies Act. 2013,

Capital Reserve
The excess of net assets tken over the consideration paid. il any. is treated as capital reserve. This capital reserve hias arisen as @ result of sehene
ol amalzamation in the past periods,

his space his been itentonally Teft blunk
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All ligures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)

14 Borrowings
Particulars

As at As at
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022

Current borrowings

Loan [rom banks
Seeured
= Working capital loan (reler note (a))
= Others (refer note (b))

10.00 -
13.02 11.07
23.02 11.07

(a) Current borrowings repayment schedule and security

A I Marel As at 31 March
Name of Bank MNature of Security | Rate of interest Maturity g m;]n Aret o8 21]122N are

Ist pari passu charge
on current assets ol
the Company ranking
pari passu with other
Mizuho Bank banks 8.20% 10 April 2023 10.00 -

(b) pertains to obligation against bills discounted and remaining unsettled as at year end from 11DFC Bank.

(e) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 Crores in aggregate from banks during the
vear on the basis of security of current assets ol the Company and quarterly statements filed by the Company with such
banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company,

This space has been intentionally left blank
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AL Ngures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)

IS5 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars Asat As
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
lixpenses allowed on payment basis 395 3.35
Provision Tor doubtiul debts 0.03 0.01
[Lease liabilities 384 6.60)
Deferred Government Grant 0.70 0.77
Others 0.08 0.08
Deferred tax assets 10.60 1L81
Property plant and equipment. intangibles and right-of-use assets (6.04) (8.99)
Deferred tax linbilities (6.04) (8.99)
Deferred (ax assets (net) 4.56 1.82

Movement of deferred tax assets:

Particulars Expenses Provision l.ease Deferred  Property plant  Others Total

allowed on  for doubtful  liabilitics Government and equipment,

payment debts Grant intangibles and
basis right-of-use
assets

Balance as at 1 April 2021 316 0.01 7.14 0.67 (10.36) .06 0.68
(Charged)/credited:
- 1o profit or loss 0.10 - (0.54) 0.10 1.37 0.02 1.05
- 1o other comprehensive income 0.09 - - - - - 0.09
As at 31 March 2022 3.35 0.01 6.60 0.77 (8.99) 0.08 1.82
(Charged)/credited:
- 1o profit or loss 0.56 0.02 (0.76) (0.07) 295 - 2.70
- 1o other comprehensive income 0.04 - - - - - (.04
As at 31 March 2023 3.95 0.03 5.84 0.70 (6.04) 0.08 4.56

The particulars of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are:

Statement of profit and loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Tax expense

Current tax 26.73 18.72

Deferred tax (2.70) {1.04)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 24.03 17.68

Other Comprehensive income

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Re-measurement losses on defined benelit plans 0.04 0.09
Deferred tax charged to OCI .04 0.09

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2023 and 31 Murch 2022:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prolit before tax s 74 71.72
Tax using Company's domestic tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Expected income tax expense 24.10 18.05
T adjustments related 1o carlicr yoar 0,54 (0,631
Fax impact on items not deductible under neome Tax 0,38 0.26
Additional deductions under Income Tax. Act® (0.99) =
Income Tax expense 24.03 17.68

= In respect of shares issued 1w the employees ol the Company under the ESOP 5 il |INO Minda Limited. the holding company
?-'_U-l & o
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All figures are in  crore unless otherwise stated)

16 Provisions

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits

- Provision for compensated absences - 1.97
- Provision for gratuity (refer note 33) 6.50 6.66
Other provisions
- Provision for warranty* 0.96 0.87
Total (A) 7.46 9.50
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for compensated absences 5.18 236
- Provision for gratuity (refer note 33) 1.62 -
Other provisions
- Provision for warranty* 157 1.56
Total (B) 8.37 3.92
Total (A+B) 15.83 13.42

Provision for warranty

Particulars Axat Axat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 2.43 3.12
Provisions made during the year 1.51 0.27
Provisions utilised/ reversed during the year (1.41) (0.96)
Balance at the end of the year __2.53 243

* The Company has made a warranty provision on account of sale of products with warranty clause.
These provisions are based on management’s best estimate and past trends. Actual expenses for warranty
are charged directly against the provision. Un-utilised provision is reversed on expiry of the warranty
period.

17 Deferred government grants

: As al As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

At the beginning of the year 3.04 2.64
Received during the year - 0.83
Released to statement of profit and loss (0.25) (0.43)
At the end of the year 2.79 3.04
Current 0.25 0.25
Non-current 2.54 2.79

2.79 3.04




Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al lgures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)

18 Trade payables

a) Details of Trade payables:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 32.76 39.61
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than above 158.80 116.56
191.62 156.17

b) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 30-90 days terms
¢) Trade payables to related parties amounts to as at 31 March 2023 2 60.21 crores (31 March 2022 3 37.60 crores) (refer note 38).

d) Details of dues o micre and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

; As at Asat
Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
I'he principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at
the end ol each accounting year:

- Principal 32.76 30.61
- Interest - =

The amount ol interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act. -

2006 along with the amounts ol the payment made to the supplier beyond the -
appointed day during each accounting year,

The amount ol interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment = =
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without

adding the interest specilied under the MSMED Act. 2006.

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - E
years. until such date when the interest due as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deduetible expenditure under Section

23 of the MSMED Act. 2006

¢) Trade payables ageing scheduole
As at 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars — Less than 1 More than 3 i
Unbilled 1-2 years | 2-3 years ) Total
year years
Total u.ulslanding dues ol micro enterprises and small ) 1276 ] . ) 1276
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro - C B
: e . . 33.62 125.20 0.04 - . 158.86
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro  enterprises and  small
cnterprises
Disputed  dues ol creditors  other  than  micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 33.62 15796 0.04 - - 191.62
As at 31 March 2022
Ountstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars . Less than 1 More than 3 =
Unbilled i-2 years | 2-3 years To T'otal
year years
Total uluistum[iug dues ol micro enterprises and small i 39.61 | ) il 39.61
cnlerprises
l'otal n.utsmndmg dues of CI:milturs other than micro 9% 3 91.03 0.20 0.0 k 116.56
cnterprises and small enterprises
Disputed  dues ol micro  enterprises and  small
cnlerprises
Disputed  dues  of creditors  other  than  micro
cnterprises and small enterprises |
Total 25.21 0.12 - 156.17
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19 Other financial liabilities

As at As at

Particulars
arficulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(A) Non-current
Deferred payment liabilities (refer note | below) 0.74 -
Total (A) 0.74 -

(B) Current

Employee related payables 5.12 4.70
Deferred payment liabilities (refer note | below) 0.13 -

Payable against capital goods 3.07 1.9
Total (B) 8.32 6.61
Total (A+B) g 9.06 6.61

Note I: The Company is setting up a plant in Farrukh Nagar, Gurugram. Haryana. During the year. the Company has
received demand from forest department to pay INR 1.50 Crores in 10 years in installments starting from FY 2022-23
for conservation of environment. The Company has paid INR 0.30 Crore during the year. For balance amount, the
Company has recognised deferred payment liability measured at present value using incremental borrowing rate.

¢) Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Particulars Al o
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Borrowings 23.02 11.07
Trade payables 191.62 156.17
Lease liabilities 23.19 25.20
Other financial liabilities 9.06 6.61
246.89 199.05
20 Other current liabilities
; . As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advances from customers® 447 15.85
Advance against sale of property. plant and equipment
from a related party (refer note 1 below and note 38) 8.70 -
Statutory dues 5.10 3.16
Total other current liabilities 18.27 19.01

*including NIL (March 31, 2022: ¥ 11.81 crores) from related parties (refer note 38).

Note 1: During the year. the Company has entered into an agreement to sell the land situated at Manesar District
Gurugram. Haryana with Sazz Advisory LLP and received part consideration in advance against the same. However,
subsequent to the Balance Sheet date. the parties have mutually agreed to cancel the agreement and refund the
advance.
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21 Revenue [rom contracts with enstomers

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Sale of poods

Sule of services

Total (A)

Other operating revenue:
Serup sales

Lxport incentives

Total (I3)

Total revenue from contracts with customers (A) + (B)

Motes:
(i) Timing of revenue recognition

1.241.21 881.26
1.87 2.15
1.243.08 883.41
4,05 4.02
.50 .26
4.55 4.28
1,247.63 887.69

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
e 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Goods transierred at a point in time 1.247.63 887.69
Total 1.247.63 887.69
(i) Revenue by location of customers
, For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars S
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within India 1.222.85 868.51
Qustide India 24,78 19.18
Total 1,247.63 887.69

(i) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Far the year ended
31 March 2022

Revenue as per contracted price
Clash discount
Total revenue from contracts with customers

22 Other income

1.249.06 888.93
(1.43) (1.24)
1,247.63 887.69

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Interest income on fixed deposits and others
Government granls (reler note 17 and 31)

Liabilities/ provision writlen back

Provisions lor doubtlul trade receivables written back
Net gain on loreign currency transaction and translation
Net gain on sale of property. plant and equipment
Total

23 Cost of raw material and components consumed

(1.68 0.26
(.68 1.31
0.13 0.15
0.06 (1.04

- (1.04
0.57 319
2.12 4.99

Particulars

Far the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Inventory al the beginning ol the year
Add : Purchases of raw materials and components

Less @ Inventory al the end ol the vear
Total

2

=

Purchase of (raded goods

94.29 37.69
889,11 034,17
9830 (U186
118.35 94.29
865.05 597.57

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year md:ﬁ—
31 March 2022

Purehise ol traded goods
Total

286

3137

2.86

2.37
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25 incrense in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

(A) Inventories at the beginning of the Year

- Work in progress

- Finished goods (including tools and moulds)

Total (A)

(B) Inventories at the end of the Year

- Work in progress

- Finished goods (including tools and moulds )

Total (B)

Inerease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

- Work in progress

- Finished goods (meluding tools and moulds)

Total (A) - (B)

26 _Employee benelits expense

8.99 6.40
27,11 20.92
36,10 27,32
13.83 8.99
32.12 27.11
45.95 36.10
(4.84) (2.59)
(5.01) (6.19)
{9.85) (8.78)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 33)
Employee stock option expenses (refer note 41)

StalT welfare expenses

Total

27 Finance costs

130.15 97.67
7.82 6.75
0.66 1.37
4.33 346

142.96 109.45

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Interest expense on:
(1) borrowings

(11} lease liabilities (Refer Note 3)
(i) delayed payment ol taxes and duty

Total

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense

0.27 013
2.06 222
0.14 0.01
2.47 2,36

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Depreciation of property. plant and equipment (refer note 4)
Deprecintion ol right-ol-use assets (refer note 5)
Amortisation of intangible assels

Total

26.07 2274
147 145
3.55 224

3L0Y 26.43
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29 Other exy

For the vear ended

For the vear ended

S
Pasticsia 31 Mareh 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Consumption ol stores and sparcs 16.25 13.15
Power and fuel 12.21 9.26
Rent (refer note 3) 1.16 1.08
Repairs and maintenance

- Buildings (.83 0.75
- Plant & Machinery 7.01 649
- Others 4,30 3.90
Insurance 233 1.96
Rates and taxes 0.11 0.32
Travelling and conveyance 9.94 7.10
Packing and forwarding expenses 11.03 0.06
Warranty expenses .51 0.27
Rovalty 6.04 .64
Legal and professional 2.35 224
Management lees 36.85 28.70
Payment to auditors ® 0.40 047
Property. plant and equiprment written ofT 0.08 0.05
Bud trade receivables written of T 0.18 0.39
Provision for doubt{ul rade receivables 0.11 0.06
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note below) 1.02 1.03
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 0.39 -
Miscellaneous expenses 491 3.63
Total 119.43 91.56

* Payment made 1o auditors is as Tollows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

As auditor

- Audit fee 0.18 0.32

- Limited review 018 013

In other capacity:

- For other services - 0.01

-Reimbursement of expenses 0.04 0.01

Total (.40 0.47

Note: Corporate Social Responsibility

As per provisions of Section 135 of the Companics Act. 2013. the Compuny has to incur at least 2% of average net profits of the preceding
three financial years towards Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR). Accordingly. a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. Details

of amount required to be spent and actual amount spent is below:

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

A) Gross Amount required 1o be spent by the Company during the vear 1.02 1.03
Yet to be paid in cash Total
B) Amount spent during the year ended on 31 Mareh 2023
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
(i) On purpose other than (i) above - 1,02
Cy Amount spemt during the year ended on 31 Mareh 2022
{1) Construction / acquisition ol any assel - -
(1) On purpose other than (i) above 2 1.03
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30
(a)

Contingent labilitics and commitments
Contingent [inbilitiey

During lnancial year 2018-2019, Dircclorate General ol Goods and Serviees Tux Intelligence issued o Show Cause Notiee ("SCN™) on the
Company alleging that the cost ol drawing/design/specilication received Tree ol cost Trom one ol the customers for manufacture of
moulds/dies/parts/components was stpposed 1o be included in the cost ol moulds/dies/parts/components (as the transaction value) in supply
made 1o the customer. During the year. the Compuany has reecived demand order [rom Directorate General ol GST Tntelligence dated 30
December 2022, demanding Central Fxeise Duly amounting to 2 0.31 crores (31 March 2022: & NIL)Y in respeet ol the aforesaid matter,
Subsequent to the Balanee Sheet date. the Company has filed an appeal against the said demand with CESTAT. New Delhi and is pending
adjudieation 1l date,

(hy Capital commitments (net of advance)

Estimated amount of contraets remaining to be exceuted on capital aecount and not provided Tor net of advances T 63.69 crores (31 March
2022: 3 6.24 crores).

() Manesar plu ol the Company is situated al Village Nawada Fatehpur. P.O. Sikanderpur Baddie Gurugram. Harvana admeasuring ol 6.23

acres of land which is notificd under the residential zone by the authorities in the carlier period. The Company is vel 1o teccive uny notice lroim
Fown and Country Planning. to vacate this land and also has received factory lieense (il 315t December 2026, Till carlier year. the Company
was planning to shifl the plant from Manesar location to Farrukh nagar location in Harvana, However. subsequent (o the Balance Sheet dute.
the Company has decided to continue in the Manesar plant and uselul lives of the property. plant and equipment are assessed accordingly.

(d) The Hon"ble Supreme Court ol India ("SC™) by their order dated February 28. 2019, set oul the principles hased on which allowances paid 1o

31

the employees should be identilied for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes ol computation of Provident Fund contribution. Review
petition against this decision is peding before the SC lor disposal. Further there are interpretative challenges and considerable uneertainty.
including estimation in the amount retrospectively, Pending the outcome of the review petition and direetions lrom the Employee Provident
Fund Organisation. the impact lor pust periods. iCany. is not ascertainable reliably and consequently no (inancial impact has been considered
in the linancial statements,

The Company has recognised revenue subsidy of 2 0,43 crores (Previous Year 2 0.88 crores) under Gujarat State Eleetronics Policy. The said
subsidy is hooked under Statement of Profit and |oss,

32A Earning per share

) Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year ativibutuble 1o equity holders by the weighled averuge number ol equity

shares outstanding during the vear,

D) Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the prolit attributable o equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstunding during the vear plus the weighted average number ol equity shares that would be issued on conversion ol all the dilulive potential
cquity shares fnto equity shares,

¢) The following reflects the income and share daty used in the basie and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars Anat Aaat

31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
Profit for the year attributable o the equity shareholders (2 in crores) 71.71 54.04
Weighted uverage number of equity shares outstanding 1.00.00.000 1.00.00.000
Busie and diluted earnings per share (face value T 10 per share) (in ) 71.71 -

d) There have heen no transactions involving equity shares or potential cquity shares hetween the reporting date and the date of authorisation of

these nancial statements,
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32B Capital management
For the purpose ol the Company s capital management. capital includes issued equity capital. retained carnings and all other reserves. The
primary objective ol the Company's capital management is 1o maximise the sharcholder value.
I'he Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders. return capital
to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. The Company includes within net debt. interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash cquivalents.

Particulars i o

31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Borrowings® 23,02 11.07
Less: cash and cash equivalents (restricted to total debt) (13.47) (11.07)
Net debt (A) 7.55 -
Equity share capital 10.00 10.00
Other equity 310.78 25541
Total equity (B) 320.78 265.41
Capital and net debt (A+B) = (C) 328.33 26541
Gearing ratio (A)/(C) 2.30% 0.00%

* Borrowings does not include lease liahilities,

This space has been intentionally left blank




Mindarika Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023
(ANl Higures are in 2 crore unless otherwise stated)

33 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes provident fund and Employee State Insurance (ESI) contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying
employees. Under the Schemes. the Company is required 1o contribute a specilied percentage ol the payroll costs to fund the benefits, The
Company recognised Rs. 7.82 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 6.75 erores) lor provident fund and ESI contributions in the Statement of Profit
and Loss (Refer Note 26), The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the Schemes.

b) Defined benefit plan

The employees’ Gratuity Fund Seheme. is @ detined henefit plan. which maintains its investments with Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LIC). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payiment of Gratuity Act. 1972, Under the sratuity plan. every employee who has completed at
least live yeurs of service usually gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn basic salary for cach completed year of service or part

thereol in excess ol six months.

(i) Changes in the present value of defined bencefit obligations:

Particulars

Present value

Fair value of

Net amount

of obligation plan assets
1 April 2021 (A) 171 511 6.60
Current Service cost 142 - 1.42
Interest expense/(income) (.80 .35 0.45
Total amount recognized in profit or loss (B) 222 0.35 1,87
Remeasurements
(Gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (0.37) - (0.37)
Loss arising from Experience adjustment 0.79 - 0.79
Return on plan assets - 0.03 (0.05)
Total amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (C) 0.42 0.05 0.37
Benefit Payments (2.18) - (2.18)
Total Cash flow (D) (2.18) - (2.18)
31 March 2022 (A)HB)HC)+(D) 12.17 5.51 6.66
1 April 2022 (A) 12,17 5.51 6.60
Current Service cost 1,62 - 1.62
Interest expense/(income) 0.88 0.40 0.48
Acquisition adjustiment 0.37 - 0.37
Total amount recognized in Statement of profit and loss (B) 2.87 0.40 247
Remeasurements
l.oss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (0.15) - (0.15)
Loss arising [rom Experience adjustment 0.33 - 0.35
Return on plan assets - 0.03 (0.03)
Total amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (C) 0.20 0.03 017
Benefit Payments (1.18) - (1.18)
Total Cash flow (D) {1.18) - (1.18)
31 Mareh 2023 (A)H(B)+(C)+(D) 14.06 594 8.12
(ii) The net defined benefit liability is diselosed below:
Particulars As at As at
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Present value ol funded ohligation 14.06 247
Fair value ol plan ussels (3.94) (3.51)
Defined benefit liability 8.12 6.66
Non-current 6.50 6.66
Current 1.62 -
Total 8.12 6.66
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(iii] Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

(v

-—

I'he signilicant assumptions were us [ollows

Particalars

Asat
31 March 2023

As al
31 March 2022

Acturial assumptions

Discount rate 7.36% 7.20%
Future salary growth rate 8.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate
upto 30 years 20.00% 20.00%
from 31- 44 years 10.00% 10.00%
above 44 vears 8.00% 8.00%

. 100% of IALM 100% ol IALM
e (2012-14) (2012-14)
Retirement age (vears) S8/60 S8/60/62

(iv) Sensitivity analysis

A quantative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at March 31.2023 is as shown below:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.00% increase in discount rate (0.91) (0.84)
[.00% decrease in discount rate 0.97 0.96
1.00% increase in salary escalation rate 0.96 0.85
1.00% decrease in salary escalation rale (091 (0.78)
0.50% increase in attrition rate 0.20 0.19
(1.50% decrease in attrition rate (0.28) (0.30)
Expected benefit payments
Lindiscounted amount of expected benefit payments in future vears are as follows:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within 1 year 1.62 .74
1-3 years 412 4.98
More than 3 years 18.60 17.05
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34A Fair Values

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments by category

Set out below. is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company s linancial instruments. other than those
with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of Tair values:

A. Financial assets:

Particulars Carrying value Fair value

As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

At amortised cost

Trade receivables 17143 133.66 171.43 133.66
Cash and cash equivalents 1547 40.25 1547 40.25
Other linancial assets 3.24 2.94 3.24 2,94
190.14 176.85 190.14 176.85
B. Financial linbilities
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

At amortised cost

Deferred payment liabilities 0.87 - 0.87 -
Borrowings 23.02 11.07 23.02 11.07
Trade payables 191.62 156.17 191.62 156.17
Employee related payables 5.2 4.70 5.12 4,70
Payable against capital goods 3.07 1.91 3.07 1.91

223.70 173.85 223.70 173.85
Note

I. Fair value of trade receivables. cash and cash equivalents. other financial assets. trade payables. other current [inancial liabilitics and
current borrowings approximate their carrving amount. largely due to the short-term nature ol these instruments.

2. Security deposits under non-current other financial assets and deferred payment liabilities are discounted at present value. Accordingly.
the carrving value ol the same approximates [air value,

Fair Value Hierarchy

All financial instruments [or which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. described as
[ollows. based on the lowest level input that is insignilicant to the fair value measurements as a whole.

Level | 2 Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets lor identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 1 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 ¢ Valuation techniques lor which the lowest level input which has a significant effeet on fair value measurement is not based on
observable market data.
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Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy as on March 31, 2023:

Particulars Carrying value Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Trade receivables 17143 - 171.43
Cash and cash equivalents 1547 - 15.47
Other linancial assets 3.24 - 3.24
Total 190.14 - 190.14
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilitics 23.19 - 23.19
Delerred payment liabilitics 0.87 - 0.87
Borrowings 23.02 - 23.02
Trade payables 191.62 - 191.62
LEmployee related payables 5.12 - 5.12
Payable against capital goods 3.07 - 3.07
246.89 - 246.89
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy as on March 31, 2022:
Particulars Carrying value Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Trade receivables 133.66 - 133.66
Cash and cash equivalents 40.25 - 40.25
Other linancial assets 2.94 - 2.94
Total ' 176.85 - 176.85
Financial liabilities
Lease liubilities 25.20 - 25.20
Borrowings 11.07 - 11.07
Trade payables 156.17 - 156.17
Employee related payables 4.70
Payable against capital goods 1.91 - 1.91
199.05 - 194.35

Note: There have been no translers between Level 1. Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
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34B Financial risk management objectives and policies

(i)

The Company’s principal financial labilities comprise of trade and other payables. lease liabilities. borrowings and payables for property.
plant and equipment. The main purpose of these (inancial liabilitics is 1o finance the Company’s operations. The Company's principal
financial assets include trade and other receivables. cash and cash cquivalents and security deposits that derive directly from its
operations.

[he Company is exposed to market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management oversees the management ol these
risks. The Company's management is supported by [inance department that advises on financial risks and the appropriate linancial risk
governance framework for the Company. The finance department provides assurance 10 the Company's management that the Company's
linancial risk activitics are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that [inancial risks are identified. measured and managed
in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. It is the Company's policy thal no trading in derivatives lor speculative
purposes may be undertaken.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing cach ol these risks. which are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract. leading 10 a
linancial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its linancing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions. foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company subject to the Company’s established policy. procedures and controls relating 1o
customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit raling. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored. At March 31. 2023. the Company had two customers (March 3 1. 2022: two customers) that owed the
Company more than 37,80 crores and accounted lor approximately 25% (March 3 1. 2022: 35%) of all the receivables outstanding.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition. a large number of minor
receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of linancial assets (trade receivables) disclosed in Note 9.
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(ii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able 0 meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unaceeptable losses.
Fhe Company’s objective is to. at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meel its cash and collateral requirements, The Company
closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources ol financing including
loans rom banks at an optimised cost.,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilitics based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at 31 March 2023 On demand Less than 3 3-12 I-5 years More than 5 Total
months months years
Total financial liabilities
Borrowings B 23.02 - E - 23.02
Yavable against capital goods - 3.07 - = - 3.07
Employee related payables - 5.12 - - - 5.12
Deferred payment liabilities - 0.20 - 0.60 040 1.20
I'rade payables - 191.62 - - - 191.62
- 223.03 - 0.60 0.40 224.03
As at 31 March 2022 On demand Less than 3 3-12 1-5 years More than 5 Total
months months years
Total financial liabilities
Borrowings - 11.07 - - - 11.07
Payable against capital goods - 1.91 - - - 1.91
Employee related payvables - 4.70 - E - 4.70
Trade payables - 156.17 - - - 156.17
- 173.85 - - - 173.85

Note - The maturity analysis ol lease luabilities is disclosed in note 5
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(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Mows ol a financial instrument will Nuctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market rish comprises interest rate risk and currency risk.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31. 2022,

FForeign
risk

Currency

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the lair value or future cash Nows ol an exposure will Muetuate because of changes in [oreign exchange
rates. The Company’s exposure (o the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when
revenue or expense is denominated in a loreign currency).

I'he Company transacts business in local currency as well as in forcign eurrency. The Company has foreign currency trade payables and trade
receivables and is therefore, exposed 1o foreign exchange risk. The Company may use currency swaps or [orward contracts towards hedging

risk resulting from changes and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate as per the risk management policy.

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposures:

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

; Irorei Foreign
Particulars ('urrcncgyn(in Indian Rupees (furrencgy (in  Indian Rupees
crores) crores)
Trade payables
LUsD 0.12 10.06 0.09 7.06
IPY 13.42 8.29 5.91 3.69
Suro 0.00 0.02 0.00 0.02
THB 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00
Trade receivables
usD 0.01 .11 0.04 297
Iy - - 111 (.69

Sensitivity Analysis

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. with all other variables held
constant. The impact on the Company s profit before tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities is given below:

Net exposure

. - . Yearend  Changes in in foreign liffect on profit Effect on profit
Farticulurs Changein curiehigy tite rates rafcs currcncf(in before tax[(‘lNR] after tax (I:T\'R)
crores)

As at 31 March 2023 INR/USD Increases by 5% 82.2169 4.11 (0.11) (0.43) (0.33)
INR/USD decreases by 5% 822169 (.11 (0.11) 0.45 0.33
INRAIPY Inereases by 5% 0.6180 0.03 (13.42) (0.41) (0.31)

INRAPY decreases by 5% 0.6180 (0.03) (13.42) 0.41 0.31
INR/THB Increases by 3% 2.3904 0.12 (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

INR/THRB decreases by 5% 2.3994 (0.12) (0.00) 0.00 0.00

INR/LEuro Increases by 3% 8Y.6076 4.48 0.00 0.00 0.00
INR/Euro decreases by 5% 89.6076 (.48) 0.00 (0.00) (0.00)
Asat 31 March 2022 INR/USD Increases by 3% 76.1781 381 (0,04 {0.14 (0.11)
INR/AUISD deereases by 5% 76.1781 (3.81) (0.04) 0,14 0.11
INRAPY Increases by 3% 0.6254 0.03 (3.20) (0,109 (0.07)

INRAPY decreases by 5% 0.6254 (0.03) (3.20) 0.10 0.07
INR/THRB Increases by 3% 22817 0.11 (0.00) {0.00) {0.00)

[NR/TTHIB decreases by 5% 22817 (0.11) 10,001 0.00 0.00
INR/Euro Increnses by 5% 84.0067 120 10.00) {0,000y (0.00)

INR/Euro decreases by 5% 840067 {-4.20) (0.00) 0.00 0,00

Interest rate risk

Interest rate rish is the risk that the fair value or future cash Nows ol a (inancial instrument will Duetuate because ol changes in market interest

mpany's borrowings are at fived rates which are carried at amortised cost. They arc therefore not subject o interest rate risk.
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36

Segment Information

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of automolive electronic switches, The entire operations are governed by
the same set of risk and returns and. hence. the same has been considered as representing a single primary segment.

Since the Company's business activity falls within a single business segment. there are no additional disclosure to be provided under
Ind AS 108. "Operating Segments™ other than those already provided in the financial statements.

Geographieal segments-

The analysis of geographical segment is based on geographical location of the Compauny:

Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022

Revenue

Within India 1.222 85 868.51

Outside India 24.78 1918

Total 1,247.63 887.6Y

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Non-current operating assefs®
India

Outside India

Total

* excluding loan to employees, income tax assets (net) and deferred tax assets (net),

172.70

172.70

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Trade receivables
India

Outside India
Total

Research and development expenses *

Salaries and wages

Contributions to provident fund and other funds
Stall welfare

Travelling and conveyance

Miscellaneous expenses

* Exeludes capital expenditure of 2 0.30 crores ( Previous year 2 Nil) .

170.32 129.99
111 3.67
171.43 133.66

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

4.67 4.39
0.33 0.30
0.05 0.08
0.18 0.03
243 .98
7.66 5.80

JTA The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer
pricing regulation under Sections 92-92F ol the Income-tax Act. 1961, Since. the law requires existence of such information and
documentation to be contemporancous in nature, the Company continuously updates its documentation 1o determine whether the
transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the linancial year on an arm's length basis, The management is of the
opinion that such transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the linancial statements.
purticulurly on the amount ol tax expense and that ol provision for taxation,

Tns space has been mtentionally lefl blank
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35 Related porty tronsactions

Description of rel I Narmes of related parties

(:1) Reluted parties and nature of related party relationships where control exists:-

LSO Mnda Limared (Formerly koown as Mimida

Hildinee Comp
ol Company Industries Limited)

Enterprise Baving sienificant influence over the Company Tokm Rika Co Lt Japan

() Related party snd nature of related party with which transaetions have taken place during the year:-

UNO Minda BV Svstems Private Linated (we | 1o
December 2021 )

Mindy Katolae Eletronmies Services Pot |

MITIL Polvmer Private Lumited

P Ninda Trading

Fellow subsidiaries

Enterprises n which diectors members of the Company cin exercise sigmifieant miluence Shankur Moulding Lid
Minda Investment Lid
Mitda Projects Lid
Tokan Rika ( Thanland ) Co Lid
Tokar Rika Minda ndia Pyt Ltd
Toka Rika Create Corporaton ( Ioriea)
Tikan Rika Co Ll Philippines
Tovods Goser Minda Indin Pyt Lid
Tokairtha Indonesia
Minda | Conneet Pyt Lid
Minda Indusires (firm)
Shrecaumy Real Estate SEZ Pyt Lid
Spieetrirn Techno Construction Py L
Shreeyumyi Habuaton Pyt Lid
Munda Infastructure LLP
Toyoda Goser South Indus Privine Limmned
Sumuan Nirmal Minda Charttalile Trist
Furukawa Minda Electrie Private Limied
(wel | Jonuary 2023)
SAZZ Advisory LLP

Mr Nl Kumar Mmda (Charman & Managing
Director)

Ms Deepali Chandhoke (Independent Director)
(upto 6 February 2023)

Mr Hhidehito Araki [Independent Difeelor)

M Hitovasu Goto { Deputy Managing Director)

Me Aml Smgh Makhloga (Whole-time  Director)
(wel 26 April 2021}

Key Manpgement Personmel (KMP)

ey Details of related party transoetions during the vear

Year ended Year ended

i
Particulnrs 31 March 2023 31 Mnrch 2022

(i) Revenue
Holding Company
= UNO Minda Limited ( Formerly Known as Minda Industies Limited)

Sale ol goods 1828 1077
Sule of services o2 | o8

Enterprise having significant infl over the €
Sale of gonds
- Tokar Rika Co Lid, Japan i3l 052

Fellow subsidinries
Sale of goods

~Minda Kotolae Electromes Services P Lid 40 200

=PT Minda Trading 73 730

Sale ol services

-Minda Katoloe Eleetronies Services Pvt Lid (absolute 2 15,245 for 31 Mareh 2027) i -
Yeur ended Year ended

Particulars

31 Mareh 2023

31 March 2022

Enterprises in which directors/members of the Caompany ean exercise significant influence
Sule of goods

- Tk Ry Nkt India Pyt Lad 07 64 A 35
= Toki Rk Create Coeporation (o) adT 701
= Tk Rkt ( Thanland ) Co Lad 023 -
- Shankat Mouldm |t 13 30 B2
= Tovoda Goser Munda i Py Ll 02 77 1 g
- Towandit Gowet Sowth India Provare Linited 770 UL
= Furukawa Mimda Eleetrie Private Limted 116
Snle of services

Shunbar Sowhdin |id i 1k

(ii) Reimbursement ol expenses (received)

Holding company
=10 Minda Lammed CFormerdy knoswn as Ninds Industeies | ied) -
Fmplovise henelin expenses d 033 .
Miascelluneous expenses 25 (a7
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Fellow subsidinries
Employee benefit expenses
- UNO Minda EV Svstems Private Limned

Fellow Subsidiaries
of Exj
-Minda katolae Electronies Services Py Lid

3l

[ it} il
Enterprises in which directors/members of the Company eun exercise significant influence
Reiml of Empl Benefit Expenses
= Tokar Rika Minda India Pyt Lad 39 11 300
Key Management Personnel
Rent Recovery
= Hirovasu Goto 002 a2
(i) Sale of property, plant and equipment
Enterprise having significant infl aver the Comy
- Tokar Rika Co Ltd. Japan 1 55 =
{iv) Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Holding company
= UNO Minda Livited (Formerly known as Mnda Industries Limsted) (absolute 2 2,700 for 31 Mareh 2022) 200 =
Enterprise having significant influcnce over the Company
- Toka Rika Co Lid, Jupan 377 009
Enterprises in which directors/ % ol the Company ean evercise significant influence
= Munda Infastructure LLIP 32 80 -
- Shankar Moulding Lid (I E] -
- Shreeaumy) Real Esiate SEZ Pyt lad 862 -
- Spectrum Techno Construction Pyt Lid 39 "
= Shreeaumji Habitation Pyt Lid 384 -
(iv) Expenses
Holding company
= UNO Minda Lioted (Formerly Known as Vinda Industries Limited)
Purchase of raw matenials and components i 24do
Legal und professional 079 147
Management fees 3685 2870
Testing expenses nu3 -
SAP Licence fee 195 | 79
AMC Expenses 04 -
Remmbursement of Employee Benefit Expenses am 013
Employee stock option expenses allocated 0 66 1357
Employee Benefit Expenses 005 145
Rent 09 nel
Year ended Year ended
il 31 March2023 31 March 2022
Enterprise having significant infl over the Company
Taokai Rika Co. Ltd, Japan
-Purchase of raw materials and componients 015 074
<Lugnl and professional 0o LR D
-Royaliy 600 457
-Repair & Mmntamenance expenses 0l
-StafT-Ex Gratn | 68 b
-Resenrch & Development expenses nul -
Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase of raw materials and components
-Minda katolae Electronies Services Py Lid A d5 2206l
-MITIL Polymer Private Limted T 52T
Helmbursement of Expenses
T Manda Tradme [Nk -
~Minda hatolae Electronies Serviees vt Lid 0ol =
Emerprises in which directors/| s of the Campany can exercise significant infuence
Purehase of raw materials and components
= Tokur Rika Co Luk, Phulippines h& D] 124
< Toka Rika ( Thintand) Co Ll 1377 831
~Tokay Rika Minda Indm Py Lad |3502 8878
« Tokar Rk Creme Corporation | Torien) 140 3 330
= Shankar Moldmge Ll 2542 17350
= Tokamika Indonesig 1130 134
« Furukawa Mndu Flecime Privare Laminedd oy -
Rem
= M Tresestimet 1id 33 317
< Ninda Industries (Firm) i noj
Other expenses
=Suman Somal Mipda Chartable Trus (CSR espendiure ) | 2 (kS
N Projeers Lid 2
Shuwrthar Monddie Lud lob Work € liatises) TR 14
- Pk Riki Manda tndi Pot i (Packing & Forwarding charges) (k] nis
- Mmda | Conneet Pyr Lad i
= Mo Infastepeture LLP i

ey Manugement Personngl
Munngerinl Remuneration
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(U]

(i)

(i)

(1iiy

(iv)

1%

fvi)

(vil)

= M Nirmal Kamar Minda | 4 Huh
M Aml Smah Maldiloga 288 235

=M Throvasu Goto 131 035

Director's sitting fee

M Deepali Cliandhoke 0o in

Mr Hhdehno Araky U2 om

Payment of dividend

Hulding company

= IS0 Manda Lumied (Formerly Known as Minda Industries Limited) 827 53b

Enterprise having significant infl over the Comy

= Tokar Rika Co Lid, Japan (A H] 182

ey Management Personnel

- Mdr Nirmul Kumar Minda | 95 124

Bal ling at the end of the yenr

Particulars Yenr ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade receivables

Holding Company
= UNO Mainda Lyated (Formerly Known as Minda Indusiries Linaed)

Enterprise having significant influence over the Company
- Tokm Rika Co Lid, Japan

Fellow subsidiaries
= Minda Kutoloe Electromes Services P Lud
- T Minda Trading

Enterprises in which directors/members of the Company can exercise significant influence
- Shankar Moulding Ltd

« Tokm Rika Mmda Incm Py Lad

- Tokai Rika Crente Corporation (Torica)

- Toyoda Goser Minda India Pyt Ltd

- Toyoda Goser South India Private Limited

- Furukawa Minda Electrie Private Limited

Security deposits
Enterprises in which directors/members of the Company can exereise significant influence
= Minda Investment Lid

Advanee from customer
Holding Company
= UNO Mindu Limited (Formerdy Known as Mmdn Industries Limited)

Enterprises in which directors/members of the Company can exercise significant influence
- Toka Rika Minda Indi Pyt Lid

Advance against sale of property, plant and equipment
Enterprises in which directors/ bers of the Comy can exercise significant influence
- SAZZ Advisory LLP

Capitl Advances
Enterprises in which direetors/members of the Company can exercise significant influence
< Shankar Mouldme Ld

Advance to suppliers
Enterprises in which directars/members of the Company ean exercise significant influence
- Shankar Mouldimg 11

Trade payalbles
Holding Company
+ UNO Minda Lamed | Formerly Known as Minda Industries Limited)

Enterprise having sipnificant infl over the €
= Tokm Rika Co L, Japan

T

Fellow subsidiaries
= Mitida Kotolue Flevtiommes Services P Lid
= ML Polymuer Privane Limied

Enterprises in which direetors/ berd of the Company ean evercive significant influence

= Shynhat Menddine Lid

= Tk Rakis Co Lad, Phlippanes

- Fokinn Rk t Phaband) Co Lid

« Dok Rika Creave Corporation 1 Tone

< Toks Rika Ninda I Pat Lad
Latariha Indonesia

- Forukawa Mdo Eleemie Provate | immed
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39 Ratio Analysis and its clements

For the yvear For the year
Ratio Numerator Denominator ended ended % change| Reason for variance
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Current Ratio Current Assels Current liabilities 147 1.62 -9.06% | Not applicable
Debt-Equity Ratio | Towl Debt® Sharcholder’s Equity 014 014 5 4% | Nat applicable
Debt service = Interest &
lease Payments +
Earnings lor debt serviee = | principal Repayments
Deht Service Net profit after taxes + Non-
Coverage rutio cash operaling expenses 2350 2040 15 18% [ Notapplicable
Return on Average Shareholder’s
Liquity ratio Nel Prolits aller laxes Equity 24 47% 22 || 10.34%| Nat applicable
Inventory
Turnover ratio Cost ol goods sold Average Inventory 349 320 3 34%|Not applicable
Trade Receivable [Nel credit sales = Gross
Tumover Rato  feredit sales - sules return | Average Trade Recevable 818 751 8§ 97%| Not applicable
Net credit purchases =
Trade Payable Gross credit purchases -
Turmover Ratio | purchase return Average Trude Payable 5.1 477 7 09% | Not applicable
Net Capital Net sales = Total sales - Working capital = Current Majorly due to
Turnover Ratio |sales retum assets — Current linbilites 1042 719 44 86% | increase in sales
Net sales = Total sales -
Net Profit ratio Net Profit sales return 5.73% H09%|  -5.58%(Not applicable
Capital Employed =
Return on Capital |Earmings before interest and | Tangible Net Worth +
Employed laxes Total Debt*® 27.35% 25.16% 8.71%|Not applicable
e Interest {Finance Income)
lvestment Investment Not Applicable Not Applicable 0.00% | Not gpplicable

*Total debt includes lease liabilities

40 Other Statutory Information
(1) The Company does not have any benamt property. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 and rules made thereunder

(11) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off

(1111 The Company does not have any charge or sausfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies bevond the statutory period.
(1v) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,
(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned o or invested funds in any other person(s) or entity(ies). including loreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall
() directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Llltimate
Beneliciaries) or

(h) provide any guarantee. seeurity or the like to or on behul{ of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(v1) The Company has not recetved any tund from any person(s) or entity(ies). ineluding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

() directly or mdireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Benelicaries) or

i) provide any euarantee. security or the like an behalt ol the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(vii) The Compuany has not entered into any such Lransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as. search or survey ar any other relevan provisions of the Income

Tax Acl. 1961).
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41 Share-based compensation
I'he Company had participated m the UNU Minda kmplovee Stock Uplion Scheme- 2019 and during the year ended March 31, 2020, the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of UNO Minda Limited (formerlv known as Minda Industrics Limited) (“the Parent Company”)
had approved the grant of LO1.020 shares of face value of Rs. 2 in terms of the Employee Slock Option Scheme 2019, The scheme is
monitored and supervised by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Parent Company in compliance
with the provisions ol Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations. 2014 and amendments thereol
lrom time 1o time.

Some ol the employees ol the Company are part ol said ESOP scheme and accordingly, the Company has recorded expense apainst
employee stock option (ESOP) based on expense allocated from the Parent Company amounting to Rs, 0,66 crore (March 31.2022: Rs, 1.57
crore).

42 The Code on Social Sceurity. 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benelits during employment and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020 The Code has been published in the Gazetie of India. However. the date on which the Code will come
into elfeet has not been notilied. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into ellieet and will record any related
impact in the period when the Code becomes elfective.

43 The Company has suo-moto examined the decision made by [on"ble Supreme Court of India judgement in the case of Northern Operating
Systems Private Limited ("NOS™) (2022-TIOL-48-SC-S'T-L1) lor the applicability ol GST on “secondment of employees by overseas group
entity to Indian entity” and compared it with the fact patiern of the Company. The Company has also obtained opinion from an independent
consultant in this regard and based on the same. management has concluded that that the fact pattern in case of the Company is dilferent
from the above case, and thus there is no GST implication on the Company.

In view ol the above. the management believes that no adjustment is required to be made in the financial statements in this regard.

44 The figures for the year ended March 31.2022 were audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants,

This space has been intentionally left blank
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45 Previous year's ligures have been regrouped / reclassed. wherever necessary. 1o conform to this vear's elassification.

For S.R.Batliboi & Co, LLP For and on behall ol the Board ol Dircctors of
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